# Regular Called Meeting Riverbend Water Resources District Board Meeting Minutes January 25, 2023 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570

# MINUTES

# I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of Notice

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Van Alexander, President of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:03 p.m.

### **Directors Present:**

Van Alexander, President Steve Mayo, Vice President Fred Milton, Treasurer Tina Veal-Gooch, Past President

### **Directors Absent:**

Sonja Hubbard, Secretary

### Administration Present:

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO Eli Hunt, Director of Operations Tara Houck, CFO Becky Melton, HR Manager/Executive Assistant

### **Public Present:**

Please see the attached list for additional guests.

# II. Invocation & Pledge

Van Alexander led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance.

### III. Public Comments

None.

# IV. Special Agenda Items for Individual Consideration

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of RESO 20230125-01 accepting the recommendations of the Member Entities At Large, the City of Texarkana, Texas, and TexAmericas Center for Van Alexander, Sonja Hubbard, and Tina Veal Gooch,

# respectively, to serve an additional term as members of the Board of Directors of Riverbend Water Resources District.

A single motion was made by **Steve Mayo** and seconded by **Fred Milton** to approve RWRD RESO 20230125-01 accepting the the recommendations of the Member Entities At Large, the City of Texarkana, Texas, and TexAmericas Center for Van Alexander, Sonja Hubbard, and Tina Veal Gooch, respectively, to serve an additional term as members of the Board of Directors of Riverbend Water Resources District. The motion passed unanimously.

# B. Oaths of office, administered by Judge Bobby Howell, for Directors Tina Veal Gooch and Van Alexander.

Bowie County Judge Bobby Howell administered the Oaths of Office swearing in returning directors Van Alexander and Tina Veal Gooch.

### V. Consent Agenda Items

Item IV. A. was considered under a Consent Agenda for one single motion of approval.

# A. Discussion and possible action regarding November 19, 2022 Regular Called Meeting Minutes and December 7, 2022 Special Called Meting Minutes.

A single motion was made by **Steve Mayo** and seconded by **Fred Milton** to approve the Consent Agenda Item as listed above. The motion passed unanimously.

### VI. Regional Entity Reports

# A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin Authority (SRBA).

No report. No action taken.

# B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center (TAC).

Scott Norton, Executive Director/CEO, provided that on December 27, 2022, TAC closed on the sale of their spec building. In addition, they sold office space totalling 24,000 square feet to Rowe Casa Organics. This sale includes an option to to add 5 acres for expansion. A real estate contract was completed with a plastic recycling company named Project Cobra. Phase I for Project Cobra includes 73 acres with an additional 65 acres planned for phase II. He thanked Riverbend for all their cooperation in moving on these project and meeting with them to discuss the needs of other interested entities.

No action taken.

# C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI.

No report. No action taken.

### VI. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration

# A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the fourth quarter financials of FY 2022.

Tara Houck, Chief Financial Officer, presented the final version of the FY 2021 fourth quarter financials.

A motion was made by **Fred Milton** and seconded by **Tina Veal Gooch** to approve **RESO 20230125-02** approving the fourth quarter financials of FY 2022. The motion passed unanimously.

# B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the fourth quarter investment report for FY 2022.

Tara Houck, Chief Financial Officer, presented a new version of the FY 2022 Investment Report. It includes separating all interest income from each investment line.

A motion was made by **Tian Veal Gooch** and seconded by **Steve Mayo** to approve **RESO 20230125-03** approving the fourth quarter investment report of FY 2022. The motion passed unanimously.

# C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the FY 2021 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C.

Carol Wilder, Wilf & Henderson, P.C. presented the audit for FY 2022. She stated that Riverbend is in good financial condition. She also included that compliance and internal controls are strong. Ms. Wilder also provided that as a government entity, we are required to complete a single audit. That audit was clean and in addition, the 2022 has no findings. In addition, Kyle provided that Riverbend received an award for the third year in a row from GFOA for Excellence in Financial Reporting for FY 2021.

A motion was made by **Fred Milton** and seconded by **Tina Veal Gooch** to approve **RESO 20230125-04** approving the FY 2022 Annual Audit performed by Wilf and Henderson, P.C.. The motion passed unanimously.

# D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving a memorandum of understanding to the agreement with TexAmericas Center for current and future water supply.

Kyle Dooley provided information on the need for this memo of understanding and the section of the Purchase Contract. This memo pertains to the intake application for the Regional Water System project. As part of the discussion with the Corps and for RWRD to be able to move the intake application forward, separate from the Ultimate Rule Curve (URC) studies, we must stay within the water volumes made available through the Interim Rule Curve (IRC). This is the only path forward for the water treatment plant project now without waiting on the URC to be implemented. Our agreement with TAC to provide raw water centered around an assumption that the URC would be implemented prior to the opening of the plant. The Corps process to implement the URC has proven to be a much

lengthier timeframe than anyone anticipated at the time of the agreement. This MOU seeks to define the availability of raw water to TAC both under the IRC and the URC since there is uncertainty as to when the URC will be implemented when compared with the estimated opening date of the new water treatment plant.

A motion was made by **Steve Mayo** and seconded by **Tina Veal Gooch** to approve **RESO 20230125-05** approving a memorandum of understanding to the agreement with TexAmericas Center for current and future water supply. The motion passed unanimously.

### E. Discussion regarding fluoride and drinking water.

Kyle Dooley provided that this discussion is a follow-up to a Board discussion held at the October 2022 meeting. A presentation was made at that meeting by Dr. Shambarger and Dr. Burks regarding fluoride in drinking water. Mr. Dooley suggested that the concerns be presented to the Advisory Committee and Mayors at the next mayors' meeting. He presented that the members would have the opportunity to provide input on the implementation of a fluoride injection in the new water plant. There is still time in the design process to include it if that is what the members decide.

No action taken.

### VII. Riverbend Reports

### A. Board Members

No reports

### **B.** Executive Director/CEO

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates:

Regional Water System Project: The execution of the memo of understanding with TexAmericas Center is a huge step towards finalizing the intake application. The application will be complete and ready to turn in by the end of this week. We will then be awaiting comments from USACE. That is a key component to getting design funds released from TWDB.

Industrial Waste Water Plant: Disscussions regarding the funding for the Industrial Wastewater Plant have resulted in changes to sections D and F of the contract with the Army. Section D allows for funds not to exceed a certain amount to allow for bonds to be issued for construction. Section F is the yearly contract for services to the Army. The contract is not signed as of yet because there are still errors in the amounts allowed in each section. There will be one more meeting to finalize those numbers as well as the location of the new Industrial Plant. Another part of the discussion will be to decide the outcome of the Army's payback on the bond(s) should another industrial wastewater user move in. The final F contract will be separate contract from the water, wastewater, and industrial wastewater services contract. It will deal strictly with the bond and the payback of that bond.

Ulitmate Rule Curve and Environmental & Cultural Resources Study: There has not been much movement since October. The USACE is still moving forward on the environmental studies. They expect to sit down with Riverbend soon to discuss the numbers coming in.

An interlocal agreement has been signed with the city of Annona for sampling services.

Eli Hunt provided information on Voltus. They reached out to Riverbend to consider joining them in order to receive an incentive or a refund using generators in place of utility power. It's called demand response. Southwest Power Pool manages the grid and the wholesale power market for the central United States. Voltus works directly with them to enroll customers in the demand response. When the electric grid is overloaded, they would notify Riverbend and then our generators would be turned on. They would run no longer than about 15 minutes. Voltus would then contact Riverbend again that the generators can be turned off. They keep up with the electricity savings through their meter. Essentially, we would get paid to conserve or shift electricity usage to our generators when the grid doesn't have enough resources. At this time, our efforts to ease any strain on the grid would be small but it will be very significant once the water treatment facility is up and running.

No action taken.

### VIII. Executive Session

The board stood at ease at 12:48p.m.

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:50 p.m with quorum pursuant to section 551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Open Meetings Act.

The board came out of Executive Session at 1:41 p.m.

The board reconvened with quorum at 1:42 p.m.

#### **IX. Next Riverbend Meetings**

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, February 22, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570.

# X. Adjournment

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by **Steve Mayo** and seconded by **Fred Milton** to adjourn the meeting at 1:45 p.m. The motion passed unanimously.

The minutes of the Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, held on January 25, 2023, were read and approved on the 221D day of FEBRUARY, 2023.

Van Alexander, President

Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO

### Riverbend Water Resources District Board Meeting January 25, 2023 12:00 p.m.

Name	Organization	Title	Phone	Email
Randy Romack	Carollo	Vice President	817-291-9021	RRomack @ Carollo, com
Lance Klement	Garver	NTX Term Leadel	214-250-3457	LPKLETHENT O Garvelusa . Com
TALLO BRICES	CDM SMITH	ASSOL	5/2-771-7591	briggsd cochasmith com
PHILIP WHEAT	LAN	TEAM LEADER	(972) 802-0575	plowheat@lan-inc.com
Robert Vinet	K54	Rey Client Sama L	eader 318 21056	4 Mucto besoure con
Negittoland	Stokes	Pres, but	903-657-755	
Spe Harle	R II	Poject Mar	903-746-4357	200
Shaven Elkins	Rep. Van Deaver			0
Bobby Now 11				
Caroly wilde	auditor			
Ron Humphray	C. Ly of New Boston	Mayor	903-306-9921	Mayo. ONbcity . 015
David Penteins	Kinley HoxN	Proved May	806-239-4183	davin, Perik 1 ws @Kinley-borns com
Hal Harris	Central Bauje	GM	903 628 5601	chewsed ad . com
David Williams	MTG	P.M.	903-338-8533	dwilliams @ mtgengineers.
Piticook	CRAY /STU	AV.P.	210-867-6482	PLOCKCOPYErcom
Lang Buch	KSA		923 452 4721	I buckey kesneng for
Stephinie Bay	Black a Vealch	V. P.	169-513-3190	bachesla bully
DAND STANCOUT	CP+4	Exactut	903-905-6454	detentes e ciri un
$\supset$		)		